

1 TO THE HONORABLE SENATE:

2 The Committee on Finance to which was referred Senate Bill No. 135  
3 entitled “An act relating to expanding the responsibilities of the Green  
4 Mountain Care Board” respectfully reports that it has considered the same and  
5 recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting  
6 clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

7 \* \* \* Cost Containment Measures \* \* \*

8 Sec. 1. ALL-PAYER WAIVER; SCOPE

9 The Secretary of Administration or designee and the Green Mountain Care  
10 Board shall jointly explore an all-payer model, which may be achieved through  
11 a waiver from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. The Secretary  
12 or designee and the Board shall consider a model that includes payment for a  
13 broad array of health services, a model applicable to hospitals only, and a  
14 model that enables the State to establish global hospital budgets for each  
15 hospital licensed in Vermont.

16 Sec. 2. GLOBAL HOSPITAL BUDGETS

17 If the Secretary of Administration has not obtained an all-payer waiver  
18 pursuant to Sec. 1 of this act by January 1, 2016, the Green Mountain Care  
19 Board shall begin developing and implementing global hospital budgets using  
20 capitated payments for each hospital in this State. The Board’s approach shall  
21 impose the most rigorous standards in the design of global budgets for

1 academic medical centers, less rigorous standards in the design of global  
2 budgets for regional hospitals, and the most flexible standards in the design of  
3 global budgets for critical access hospitals. The Board shall develop a timeline  
4 for implementing the global hospital budgets, which shall be phased in over  
5 time beginning with hospital fiscal year 2017.

6 Sec. 3. ST. JOHNSBURY HEALTH SERVICE AREA; GLOBAL BUDGET

7 PILOT

8 The Department of Vermont Health Access shall use the flexibility under  
9 the Global Commitment to Health Medicaid Section 1115 waiver to establish a  
10 pilot project in the St. Johnsbury Health Service Area using a global budget for  
11 Medicaid services. The Medicaid services shall be coordinated through an  
12 accountable health community in the Health Service Area and shall include  
13 hospital, mental health, development disabilities, primary care, and home  
14 health services, as well as other Medicaid services if other service providers  
15 wish to participate. Additional funding mechanisms, such as capitated or per-  
16 member-per-month payments, may be used if the providers participating in the  
17 pilot project agree. The Department of Vermont Health Access shall  
18 implement the pilot project on or before January 1, 2016 and shall work  
19 cooperatively with the participating providers to ensure that the pilot allows for  
20 improvement of care and expansion of services while remaining budget  
21 neutral. The pilot project shall allow the participating providers to retain or

1 reinvest, or both, all savings in Medicaid expenditures resulting from improved  
2 care and expanded services.

3 \* \* \* Vermont Information Technology Leaders \* \* \*

4 Sec. 4. 18 V.S.A. § 9375(b) is amended to read:

5 (b) The Board shall have the following duties:

6 \* \* \*

7 (2)(A) Review and approve Vermont’s statewide Health Information  
8 Technology Plan pursuant to section 9351 of this title to ensure that the  
9 necessary infrastructure is in place to enable the State to achieve the principles  
10 expressed in section 9371 of this title. In performing its review, the Board  
11 shall consult with and consider any recommendations regarding the plan  
12 received from the Vermont Information Technology Leaders, Inc. (VITL).

13 (B) Review and approve the criteria required for health care  
14 providers and health care facilities to create or maintain connectivity to the  
15 State’s health information exchange as set forth in section 9352 of this title.  
16 Within 90 days following this approval, the Board shall issue an order  
17 explaining its decision.

18 (C) Annually review the budget and all activities of VITL and  
19 approve the budget, consistent with available funds, and the core activities  
20 associated with public funding, which shall include establishing the  
21 interconnectivity of electronic medical records held by health care

1 professionals and the storage, management, and exchange of data received  
2 from such health care professionals, for the purpose of improving the quality of  
3 and efficiently providing health care to Vermonters. This review shall take  
4 into account VITL's responsibilities pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 9352 and the  
5 availability of funds needed to support those responsibilities.

6 \* \* \*

7 Sec. 5. 18 V.S.A. § 9352 is amended to read:

8 § 9352. VERMONT INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LEADERS

9 (a)(1) Governance. ~~The General Assembly and the Governor shall each~~  
10 ~~appoint one representative to the~~ Vermont Information Technology Leaders,  
11 Inc. (VITL) Board of Directors shall consist of no fewer than nine nor more  
12 than 14 members. The term of each member shall be two years, except that of  
13 the members first appointed, approximately one-half shall serve a term of one  
14 year and approximately one-half shall serve a term of two years, and members  
15 shall continue to hold office until their successors have been duly appointed.

16 The Board of Directors shall comprise the following:

17 (A) one member of the General Assembly, appointed jointly by the  
18 Speaker of the House and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, who shall  
19 be entitled to the same per diem compensation and expense reimbursement  
20 pursuant to 2 V.S.A. § 406 as provided for attendance at sessions of the  
21 General Assembly;





1 same, subject to the terms, conditions, and regulations governing such  
2 donations, gifts, and grants. VITL shall not use any State funds for health care  
3 consumer advertising, marketing, lobbying, or similar services.

4 \* \* \*

5 \* \* \* Telemedicine \* \* \*

6 Sec. 6. 33 V.S.A. § 1901i is added to read:

7 § 1901i. MEDICAID COVERAGE FOR PRIMARY CARE

8 TELEMEDICINE

9 (a) Beginning on October 1, 2015, the Department of Vermont Health  
10 Access shall provide reimbursement for Medicaid-covered primary care  
11 consultations delivered through telemedicine to Medicaid beneficiaries in a  
12 residential or community setting. The Department shall ensure that coverage  
13 for the telemedicine consultations is budget-neutral by reimbursing health care  
14 professionals in the same manner as if the services were provided through in-  
15 person consultation. Coverage provided pursuant to this section shall comply  
16 with all federal requirements imposed by the Centers for Medicare and  
17 Medicaid Services.

18 (b) ~~Telemedicine shall not be used for new patient primary care~~  
19 ~~consultation visits~~ Medicaid shall only provide coverage for services  
20 delivered through telemedicine in a residential or community setting that  
21 have been determined by the Department's Chief Medical Officer to be

1 **clinically appropriate.** The Department shall not impose limitations on the  
2 number of telemedicine consultations a Medicaid beneficiary may receive or  
3 on which Medicaid beneficiaries may receive primary care consultations  
4 through telemedicine that exceed limitations otherwise placed on in-person  
5 Medicaid covered services.

6 (c) As used in this section:

7 (1) “Health care provider” means a physician licensed pursuant to 26  
8 V.S.A. chapter 23 or 33, an advanced practice registered nurse licensed  
9 pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 28, subchapter 3, or a physician assistant  
10 licensed pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 31.

11 (2) “Residential setting” means the setting in which a Medicaid  
12 beneficiary resides and which ensures individual rights of privacy, dignity and  
13 respect, and freedom from coercion and restraint.

14 (3) “Telemedicine” means the delivery of health care services such as  
15 diagnosis, consultation, or treatment through the use of live interactive audio  
16 and video over a secure connection that complies with the requirements of the  
17 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-  
18 191. Telemedicine does not include the use of audio-only telephone, e-mail, or  
19 facsimile.

20 \* \* \* Direct Enrollment for Individuals \* \* \*

21 Sec. 7. 33 V.S.A. § 1803(b)(4) is amended to read:

1           (4) To the extent permitted by the U.S. Department of Health and  
2 Human Services, the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange shall permit qualified  
3 individuals and qualified employers to purchase qualified health benefit plans  
4 through the Exchange website, through navigators, by telephone, or directly  
5 from a health insurer under contract with the Vermont Health Benefit  
6 Exchange.

7 Sec. 8. 33 V.S.A. § 1811(b) is amended to read:

8           (b)(1) ~~No person may provide a health benefit plan to an individual unless~~  
9 ~~the plan is offered through the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange~~ To the extent  
10 permitted by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, an  
11 individual may purchase a health benefit plan through the Exchange website,  
12 through navigators, by telephone, or directly from a registered carrier under  
13 contract with the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange, if the carrier elects to  
14 make direct enrollment available. A registered carrier enrolling individuals in  
15 health benefit plans directly shall comply with all open enrollment and special  
16 enrollment periods applicable to the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange.

17           (2) To the extent permitted by the U.S. Department of Health and  
18 Human Services, a small employer or an employee of a small employer may  
19 purchase a health benefit plan through the Exchange website, through  
20 navigators, by telephone, or directly from a ~~health insurer~~ registered carrier  
21 under contract with the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange.



1 (C) on and after January 1, ~~2017~~ 2018, shall include all employers  
2 meeting the requirements of subdivisions (A)(i) and (ii) of this subdivision (5),  
3 regardless of size.

4 \* \* \*

5 Sec. 10. 33 V.S.A. § 1804(c) is amended to read:

6 (c) On and after January 1, ~~2017~~ 2018, a qualified employer shall be an  
7 employer of any size which elects to make all of its full-time employees  
8 eligible for one or more qualified health plans offered in the Vermont Health  
9 Benefit Exchange, and the term "qualified employer" includes self-employed  
10 persons. A full-time employee shall be an employee who works more than 30  
11 hours per week.

12 Sec. 11. LARGE GROUP MARKET; IMPACT ANALYSIS

13 The Green Mountain Care Board, in consultation with the Department of  
14 Financial Regulation, shall analyze the projected impact on rates in the large  
15 group health insurance market if large employers are permitted to purchase  
16 qualified health plans through the Vermont Health Benefit Exchange beginning  
17 in 2018. The analysis shall estimate the impact on premiums for employees in  
18 the large group market if the market were to transition from experience rating  
19 to community rating beginning with the 2018 plan year.

20 \* \* \* Consumer Information \* \* \*

21 Sec. 12. 18 V.S.A. § 9413 is added to read:



1 sponsored health insurance plans imposed pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 4980I. One  
2 of the options to be considered shall be an intermunicipal insurance agreement,  
3 as described in 24 V.S.A. chapter 121, subchapter 6.

4 (b) The Director shall consult with representatives of the Vermont-NEA,  
5 the Vermont School Boards Association, the Vermont Education Health  
6 Initiative, the Vermont State Employees' Association, the Vermont Troopers  
7 Association, the Department of Human Resources, the Office of the Treasurer,  
8 and the Joint Fiscal Office.

9 (c) On or before November 1, 2015, the Director shall report his or her  
10 findings and recommendations to the House Committees on Appropriations, on  
11 Education, on General, Housing, and Military Affairs, on Government  
12 Operations, on Health Care, and on Ways and Means; the Senate Committees  
13 on Appropriations, on Education, on Economic Development, Housing, and  
14 General Affairs, on Government Operations, on Health and Welfare, and on  
15 Finance; and the Health Reform Oversight Committee.

16 \* \* \* Authority Over Medicaid Rates and Blueprint Payments \* \* \*

17 Sec. 14. 18 V.S.A. § 9375 is amended to read:

18 § 9375. DUTIES

19 \* \* \*

20 (b) The Board shall have the following duties:

21 \* \* \*



1 Vermont Health Access shall provide the proposed changes to the  
2 reimbursement rates and payment amounts to the Board. The Board shall  
3 review the proposed rates and payment amounts and shall approve the changes  
4 proposed by the Department pursuant to this section with or without  
5 modification. If the Board exercises its authority to increase the rates, the  
6 Department of Vermont Health Access shall adjust its rates accordingly.  
7 Medicaid and Blueprint rates shall be effective upon approval by the Board  
8 according to the implementation schedule determined by the Department of  
9 Vermont Health Access.

10 \* \* \* Provider Payment Parity \* \* \*

11 Sec. 16. 18 V.S.A. § 9418(n) is added to read:

12 (n)(1) A health plan shall reimburse a participating **physician-level**  
13 provider who is licensed as a physician pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 23 or 33,  
14 ~~as an advanced practice registered nurse pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter~~  
15 ~~28, subchapter 3, or as a physician assistant pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter~~  
16 ~~31~~ as a podiatric physician pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 7, as a  
17 chiropractic physician pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 10, or as a  
18 naturopathic physician pursuant to 26 V.S.A. chapter 81, and who is  
19 providing a covered health care service that is within his or her scope of  
20 practice the same professional fee as applied to other licensed participating  
21 physician-level providers providing the same covered service.



1 (A) call as witnesses the Commissioner of Financial Regulation or  
2 designee and the Board's contracting actuary, if any, unless all parties agree to  
3 waive such testimony; and

4 (B) provide an opportunity for testimony from the insurer; the Office  
5 of the Health Care Advocate; and members of the public;

6 (2) at a public hearing, announce the Board's decision of whether to  
7 approve, modify, or disapprove the proposed rate; and

8 (3) issue its decision in writing.

9 \* \* \*

10 (h)(1) The authority of the Board under this section shall apply only to the  
11 rate review process for policies for major medical insurance coverage and shall  
12 not apply to the policy forms for major medical insurance coverage or to the  
13 rate and policy form review process for policies for specific disease, accident,  
14 injury, hospital indemnity, dental care, vision care, disability income,  
15 long-term care, student health insurance coverage, Medicare supplemental  
16 coverage, or other limited benefit coverage, or to benefit plans that are paid  
17 directly to an individual insured or to his or her assigns and for which the  
18 amount of the benefit is not based on potential medical costs or actual costs  
19 incurred. Premium rates and rules for the classification of risk for Medicare  
20 supplemental insurance policies shall be governed by sections 4062b and  
21 4080e of this title.

1  
2  
3  
4  
5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20

\* \* \*

~~(3) Medicare supplemental insurance policies shall be exempt only from the requirement in subdivisions (a)(1) and (2) of this section for the Green Mountain Care Board's approval on rate requests and shall be subject to the remaining provisions of this section. [Repealed.]~~

\* \* \*

Sec. 18. 8 V.S.A. § 4089b(g) is amended to read:

~~(g) On or before July 15 of each year, health insurance companies doing business in Vermont whose individual share of the commercially insured Vermont market, as measured by covered lives, comprises at least five percent of the commercially insured Vermont market, shall file with the Commissioner, in accordance with standards, procedures, and forms approved by the Commissioner:~~

~~(1) A report card on the health insurance plan's performance in relation to quality measures for the care, treatment, and treatment options of mental and substance abuse conditions covered under the plan, pursuant to standards and procedures adopted by the Commissioner by rule, and without duplicating any reporting required of such companies pursuant to Rule H-2009-03 of the Division of Health Care Administration and regulation 95-2, "Mental Health Review Agents," of the Division of Insurance, as amended, including:~~

1           ~~(A) the discharge rates from inpatient mental health and substance~~  
2           ~~abuse care and treatment of insureds;~~

3           ~~(B) the average length of stay and number of treatment sessions for~~  
4           ~~insureds receiving inpatient and outpatient mental health and substance abuse~~  
5           ~~care and treatment;~~

6           ~~(C) the percentage of insureds receiving inpatient and outpatient~~  
7           ~~mental health and substance abuse care and treatment;~~

8           ~~(D) the number of insureds denied mental health and substance abuse~~  
9           ~~care and treatment;~~

10           ~~(E) the number of denials appealed by patients reported separately~~  
11           ~~from the number of denials appealed by providers;~~

12           ~~(F) the rates of readmission to inpatient mental health and substance~~  
13           ~~abuse care and treatment for insureds with a mental condition;~~

14           ~~(G) the level of patient satisfaction with the quality of the mental~~  
15           ~~health and substance abuse care and treatment provided to insureds under the~~  
16           ~~health insurance plan; and~~

17           ~~(H) any other quality measure established by the Commissioner;~~

18           ~~(2) The health insurance plan's revenue loss and expense ratio relating~~  
19           ~~to the care and treatment of mental conditions covered under the health~~  
20           ~~insurance plan. The expense ratio report shall list amounts paid in claims for~~  
21           ~~services and administrative costs separately. A managed care organization~~

1 ~~providing or administering coverage for treatment of mental conditions on~~  
2 ~~behalf of a health insurance plan shall comply with the minimum loss ratio~~  
3 ~~requirements pursuant to the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of~~  
4 ~~2010, Public Law 111-148, as amended by the Health Care and Education~~  
5 ~~Reconciliation Act of 2010, Public Law 111-152, applicable to the underlying~~  
6 ~~health insurance plan with which the managed care organization has contracted~~  
7 ~~to provide or administer such services. The health insurance plan shall also~~  
8 ~~bear responsibility for ensuring the managed care organization's compliance~~  
9 ~~with the minimum loss ratio requirement pursuant to this subdivision.~~

10 [Repealed.]

11 Sec. 19. 18 V.S.A. § 9402 is amended to read:

12 § 9402. DEFINITIONS

13 As used in this chapter, unless otherwise indicated:

14 \* \* \*

15 (4) ~~“Division” means the division of health care administration.~~

16 [Repealed.]

17 \* \* \*

18 (10) ~~“Health resource allocation plan” means the plan adopted by the~~  
19 ~~commissioner of financial regulation~~ Green Mountain Care Board ~~under~~  
20 ~~section 9405 of this title.~~

21 \* \* \*

1 Sec. 20. 18 V.S.A. § 9404 is amended to read:

2 § 9404. ADMINISTRATION

3 (a) The Commissioner and the Green Mountain Care Board shall supervise  
4 and direct the execution of all laws vested in the Department and the Board,  
5 respectively, by this chapter, and shall formulate and carry out all policies  
6 relating to this chapter.

7 (b) The Commissioner and the Board may:

8 (1) apply for and accept gifts, grants, or contributions from any person  
9 for purposes consistent with this chapter;

10 (2) adopt rules necessary to implement the provisions of this  
11 chapter; and

12 (3) enter into contracts and perform such acts as are necessary to  
13 accomplish the purposes of this chapter.

14 (c) ~~There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Health Care~~  
15 ~~Administration Regulatory and Supervision Fund for the purpose of providing~~  
16 ~~the financial means for the Commissioner of Financial Regulation to~~  
17 ~~administer this chapter and 33 V.S.A. § 6706. All fees and assessments~~  
18 ~~received by the Department pursuant to such administration shall be credited to~~  
19 ~~this Fund. All fines and administrative penalties, however, shall be deposited~~  
20 ~~directly into the General Fund.~~

1           ~~(1) All payments from the Health Care Administration Regulatory and~~  
2           ~~Supervision Fund for the maintenance of staff and associated expenses,~~  
3           ~~including contractual services as necessary, shall be disbursed from the State~~  
4           ~~Treasury only upon warrants issued by the Commissioner of Finance and~~  
5           ~~Management, after receipt of proper documentation regarding services~~  
6           ~~rendered and expenses incurred.~~

7           ~~(2) The Commissioner of Finance and Management may anticipate~~  
8           ~~receipts to the Health Care Administration Regulatory and Supervision Fund~~  
9           ~~and issue warrants based thereon. [Repealed.]~~

10          Sec. 21. 18 V.S.A. § 9410 is amended to read:

11          § 9410. HEALTH CARE DATABASE

12           (a)(1) The Board shall establish and maintain a unified health care database  
13           to enable the ~~Commissioner and the~~ Board to carry out ~~their~~ its duties under  
14           this chapter, chapter 220 of this title, and Title 8, including:

15                   (A) determining the capacity and distribution of existing resources;

16                   (B) identifying health care needs and informing health care policy;

17                   (C) evaluating the effectiveness of intervention programs on  
18           improving patient outcomes;

19                   (D) comparing costs between various treatment settings and  
20           approaches;

1           (E) providing information to consumers and purchasers of health  
2 care; and

3           (F) improving the quality and affordability of patient health care and  
4 health care coverage.

5           ~~(2)(A) The program authorized by this section shall include a~~  
6 ~~consumer health care price and quality information system designed to~~  
7 ~~make available to consumers transparent health care price information,~~  
8 ~~quality information, and such other information as the Board determines~~  
9 ~~is necessary to empower individuals, including uninsured individuals, to~~  
10 ~~make economically sound and medically appropriate decisions.~~

11           (B) The Commissioner may require a health insurer covering at least  
12 five percent of the lives covered in the insured market in this State to file with  
13 the Commissioner a consumer health care price and quality information plan in  
14 accordance with rules adopted by the Commissioner. [Repealed.]

15           ~~(C) The Board shall adopt such rules as are necessary to carry~~  
16 ~~out the purposes of this subdivision. The Board's rules may permit the~~  
17 ~~gradual implementation of the consumer health care price and quality~~  
18 ~~information system over time, beginning with health care price and~~  
19 ~~quality information that the Board determines is most needed by~~  
20 ~~consumers or that can be most practically provided to the consumer in an~~  
21 ~~understandable manner. The rules shall permit health insurers to use~~

1 ~~security measures designed to allow~~ subscribers access to price and other  
2 information without disclosing trade secrets to individuals and entities who are  
3 not subscribers. The rules shall avoid unnecessary duplication of efforts  
4 relating to price and quality reporting by health insurers, health care providers,  
5 health care facilities, and others, including activities undertaken by hospitals  
6 pursuant to their community report obligations under section 9405b of this  
7 title.

8 \* \* \*

9 (i) On or before January 15, ~~2008~~ 2018 and every three years thereafter, the  
10 Commissioner of Health shall submit a recommendation to the General  
11 Assembly for conducting a survey of the health insurance status of Vermont  
12 residents. The provisions of 2 V.S.A. § 20(d) (expiration of required reports)  
13 shall not apply to the report to be made under this subsection.

14 \* \* \*

15 Sec. 22. 18 V.S.A. § 9414 is amended to read:

16 § 9414. QUALITY ASSURANCE FOR MANAGED CARE  
17 ORGANIZATIONS

18 (a) The ~~commissioner~~ Commissioner shall have the power and  
19 responsibility to ensure that each managed care organization provides quality  
20 health care to its members, in accordance with the provisions of this section.



1           (2) A managed care organization may evaluate the quality of health and  
2 medical care provided to members through an independent accreditation  
3 organization, ~~provided that the commissioner has established criteria for such~~  
4 ~~independent evaluations.~~

5           (e) ~~The commissioner shall review a managed care organization's~~  
6 ~~performance under the requirements of this section at least once every three~~  
7 ~~years and more frequently as the commissioner deems proper. If upon review~~  
8 ~~the commissioner determines that the organization's performance with respect~~  
9 ~~to one or more requirements warrants further examination, the commissioner~~  
10 ~~shall conduct a comprehensive or targeted examination of the organization's~~  
11 ~~performance. The commissioner may designate another organization to~~  
12 ~~conduct any evaluation under this subsection. Any such independent designee~~  
13 ~~shall have a confidentiality code acceptable to the commissioner, or shall be~~  
14 ~~subject to the confidentiality code adopted by the commissioner under~~  
15 ~~subdivision (f)(3) of this section. In conducting an evaluation under this~~  
16 ~~subsection, the commissioner or the commissioner's designee shall employ,~~  
17 ~~retain, or contract with persons with expertise in medical quality assurance.~~

18           ~~[Repealed.]~~

19           (f)(1) For the purpose of evaluating a managed care organization's  
20 performance under the provisions of this section, the ~~commissioner~~  
21 Commissioner may examine and review information protected by the

1 provisions of the patient's privilege under 12 V.S.A. § 1612(a), or otherwise  
2 required by law to be held confidential, ~~except that the commissioner's access~~  
3 ~~to and use of minutes and records of a peer review committee established~~  
4 ~~under subsection (c) of this section shall be governed by subdivision (2) of this~~  
5 ~~subsection.~~

6 (2) ~~Notwithstanding the provisions of 26 V.S.A. § 1443, for the sole~~  
7 ~~purpose of reviewing a managed care organization's internal quality assurance~~  
8 ~~program, and enforcing compliance with the provisions of subsection (c) of~~  
9 ~~this section, the commissioner or the commissioner's designee shall have~~  
10 ~~reasonable access to the minutes or records of any peer review or comparable~~  
11 ~~committee required by subdivision (c)(6) of this section, provided that such~~  
12 ~~access shall not disclose the identity of patients, health care providers, or other~~  
13 ~~individuals. [Repealed.]~~

14 \* \* \*

15 (i) ~~Upon review of the managed care organization's clinical data, or after~~  
16 ~~consideration of claims or other data, the commissioner may:~~

17 (1) ~~identify quality issues in need of improvement; and~~

18 (2) ~~direct the managed care organization to propose quality~~

19 ~~improvement initiatives to remediate those issues. [Repealed.]~~

1 Sec. 23. 18 V.S.A. § 9418(l) is amended to read:

2 (1) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit a health plan from  
3 applying payment policies that are consistent with applicable federal or State  
4 laws and regulations, or to relieve a health plan from complying with payment  
5 standards established by federal or State laws and regulations, ~~including rules~~  
6 ~~adopted by the Commissioner pursuant to section 9408 of this title relating to~~  
7 ~~claims administration and adjudication standards, and rules adopted by the~~  
8 ~~Commissioner pursuant to section 9414 of this title and 8 V.S.A. § 4088h~~  
9 ~~relating to pay for performance or other payment methodology standards.~~

10 Sec. 24. 18 V.S.A. § 9418b(f) is amended to read:

11 (f) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit a health plan from  
12 applying payment policies that are consistent with applicable federal or State  
13 laws and regulations, or to relieve a health plan from complying with payment  
14 standards established by federal or State laws and regulations, ~~including rules~~  
15 ~~adopted by the Commissioner pursuant to section 9408 of this title, relating to~~  
16 ~~claims administration and adjudication standards, and rules adopted by the~~  
17 ~~Commissioner pursuant to section 9414 of this title and 8 V.S.A. § 4088h,~~  
18 ~~relating to pay for performance or other payment methodology standards.~~

1 Sec. 25. 18 V.S.A. § 9420 is amended to read:

2 § 9420. CONVERSION OF NONPROFIT HOSPITALS

3 (a) Policy and purpose. The ~~state~~ State has a responsibility to assure that  
4 the assets of nonprofit entities, which are impressed with a charitable trust, are  
5 managed prudently and are preserved for their proper charitable purposes.

6 (b) Definitions. As used in this section:

7 \* \* \*

8 (2) ~~“Commissioner” is the commissioner of financial regulation~~  
9 [Repealed.]

10 \* \* \*

11 (10) “Green Mountain Care Board” or “Board” means the Green  
12 Mountain Care Board established in chapter 220 of this title.

13 (c) Approval required for conversion of qualifying amount of charitable  
14 assets. A nonprofit hospital may convert a qualifying amount of charitable  
15 assets only with the approval of the ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care  
16 Board, and either the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General or the ~~superior court~~  
17 Superior Court, pursuant to the procedures and standards set forth in this  
18 section.

19 (d) Exception for conversions in which assets will be owned and controlled  
20 by a nonprofit corporation:

1           (1) Other than subsection (q) of this section and subdivision (2) of this  
2 subsection, this section shall not apply to conversions in which the party  
3 receiving assets of a nonprofit hospital is a nonprofit corporation.

4           (2) In any conversion that would have required an application under  
5 subsection (e) of this section but for the exception set forth in subdivision (1)  
6 of this subsection, notice to or written waiver by the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney  
7 General shall be given or obtained as if required under 11B V.S.A. § 12.02(g).

8           (e) Application. Prior to consummating any conversion of a qualifying  
9 amount of charitable assets, the parties shall submit an application to the  
10 ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General and the ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care  
11 Board, together with any attachments complying with subsection (f) of this  
12 section. If any material change occurs in the proposal set forth in the filed  
13 application, an amendment setting forth such change, together with copies of  
14 all documents and other material relevant to such change, shall be filed with  
15 the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General and the ~~commissioner~~ Board within two  
16 business days, or as soon thereafter as practicable, after any party to the  
17 conversion learns of such change. If the conversion involves a hospital  
18 system, and one or more of the hospitals in the system desire to convert  
19 charitable assets, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General, in consultation with  
20 the ~~commissioner~~ Board, shall determine whether an application shall be  
21 required from the hospital system.

1 (f) Completion and contents of application.

2 (1) Within 30 days of receipt of the application, or within 10 days of  
3 receipt of any amendment thereto, whichever is longer, the ~~attorney general~~  
4 Attorney General, with the ~~commissioner's~~ Green Mountain Care Board's  
5 agreement, shall determine whether the application is complete. The Attorney  
6 General shall promptly notify the parties of the date the application is deemed  
7 complete, or of the reasons for a determination that the application is  
8 incomplete. A complete application shall include the following:

9 \* \* \*

10 (N) any additional information the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General  
11 or ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care Board finds necessary or appropriate  
12 for the full consideration of the application.

13 (2) The parties shall make the contents of the application reasonably  
14 available to the public prior to any hearing for public comment described in  
15 subsection (g) of this section to the extent that they are not otherwise exempt  
16 from disclosure under 1 V.S.A. § 317(b).

17 (g) Notice and hearing for public comment on application.

18 (1) The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General and ~~commissioner~~ the Green  
19 Mountain Care Board shall hold one or more public hearings on the transaction  
20 or transactions described in the application. A record shall be made of any  
21 hearing. The hearing shall commence within 30 days of the determination by

1 the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General that the application is complete. If a  
2 hearing is continued or multiple hearings are held, any hearing shall be  
3 completed within 60 days of the ~~attorney general's~~ Attorney General's  
4 determination that an application is complete. In determining the number,  
5 location, and time of hearings, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General, in  
6 consultation with the ~~commissioner~~ Board, shall consider the geographic areas  
7 and populations served by the nonprofit hospital and most affected by the  
8 conversion and the interest of the public in commenting on the application.

9 (2) The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General shall provide reasonable  
10 notice of any hearing to the parties, the ~~commissioner~~ Board, and the public,  
11 and may order that the parties bear the cost of notice to the public. Notice to  
12 the public shall be provided in newspapers having general circulation in the  
13 region affected and shall identify the applicants and the proposed conversion.  
14 A copy of the public notice shall be sent to the ~~state~~ State health care and long-  
15 term care ombudspersons and to the ~~senators~~ Senators and members of the  
16 ~~house of representatives~~ House of Representatives representing the county and  
17 district and to the ~~clerk, chief municipal officer~~ Clerk, Chief Municipal  
18 Officer, and legislative body, of the municipality in which the nonprofit  
19 hospital is principally located. Upon receipt, the ~~clerk~~ Clerk shall post notice  
20 in or near the ~~clerk's~~ Clerk's office and in at least two other public places in  
21 the municipality. Any person may testify at a hearing under this section and,

1 within such reasonable time as the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may  
2 prescribe, file written comments with the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General  
3 and ~~commissioner~~ Board concerning the proposed conversion.

4 (h) Determination by ~~commissioner~~ the Green Mountain Care Board.

5 (1) The ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care Board shall consider the  
6 application, together with any report and recommendations from the Board's  
7 staff ~~of the department~~ requested by the ~~commissioner~~ Board, and any other  
8 information submitted into the record, and approve or deny it within 50 days  
9 following the last public hearing held pursuant to subsection (g) of this section,  
10 unless the ~~commissioner~~ Board extends such time up to an additional 60 days  
11 with notice prior to its expiration to the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General and  
12 the parties.

13 (2) The ~~commissioner~~ Board shall approve the proposed transaction if  
14 the ~~commissioner~~ Board finds that the application and transaction will satisfy  
15 the criteria established in section 9437 of this title. For purposes of applying  
16 the criteria established in section 9437, the term “project” shall include a  
17 conversion or other transaction subject to the provisions of this subchapter.

18 (3) A denial by the ~~commissioner~~ Board may be appealed to the  
19 ~~supreme court~~ Supreme Court pursuant to ~~the procedures and standards set~~  
20 ~~forth in 8 V.S.A. § 16~~ section 9381 of this title. If no appeal is taken or if the  
21 ~~commissioner's~~ Board's order is affirmed by the ~~supreme court~~ supreme court,

1 the application shall be terminated. A failure of the ~~commissioner~~ Board to  
2 approve of an application in a timely manner shall be considered a final order  
3 in favor of the applicant.

4 (i) Determination by ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General. The ~~attorney~~  
5 ~~general~~ Attorney General shall make a determination as to whether the  
6 conversion described in the application meets the standards provided in  
7 subsection (j) of this section.

8 (1) If the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General determines that the  
9 conversion described in the application meets the standards set forth in  
10 subsection (j) of this section, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General shall  
11 approve the conversion and so notify the parties in writing.

12 (2) If the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General determines that the  
13 conversion described in the application does not meet such standards, the  
14 ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may not approve the conversion and shall so  
15 notify the parties of such disapproval and the basis for it in writing, including  
16 identification of the standards listed in subsection (j) of this section that the  
17 ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General finds not to have been met by the proposed  
18 conversion. Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the parties from amending  
19 the application to meet any objections of the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney  
20 General.



1 conversion pursuant to the procedures set forth generally in 9 V.S.A. § 2460.

2 The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may contract with such experts or  
3 consultants the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General deems appropriate to assist  
4 in an investigation of a conversion under this section. The ~~attorney general~~  
5 Attorney General may order any party to reimburse the ~~attorney general~~  
6 Attorney General for all reasonable and actual costs incurred by the ~~attorney~~  
7 ~~general~~ Attorney General in retaining outside professionals to assist with the  
8 investigation or review of the conversion.

9 (l) Superior ~~court~~ Court action. If the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General  
10 does not approve the conversion described in the application and any  
11 amendments, the parties may commence an action in the ~~superior court~~  
12 Superior Court of Washington County, or with the agreement of the ~~attorney~~  
13 ~~general~~ Attorney General, of any other county, within 60 days of the ~~attorney~~  
14 ~~general's~~ Attorney General's notice of disapproval provided to the parties  
15 under subdivision (i)(2) of this section. The parties shall notify the  
16 ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care Board of the commencement of an action  
17 under this subsection. The ~~commissioner~~ Board shall be permitted to request  
18 that the ~~court~~ Court consider the ~~commissioner's~~ Board's determination under  
19 subsection (h) of this section in its decision under this subsection.

20 (m) Court determination and order.

21 \* \* \*

1           (4) Nothing herein shall prevent the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General,  
2 while an action brought under subsection (l) of this section is pending, from  
3 approving the conversion described in the application, as modified by such  
4 terms as are agreed between the parties, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General,  
5 and the ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care Board to bring the conversion into  
6 compliance with the standards set forth in subsection (j) of this section.

7           (n) Use of converted assets or proceeds of a conversion approved pursuant  
8 to this section. If at any time following a conversion, the ~~attorney general~~  
9 Attorney General has reason to believe that converted assets or the proceeds of  
10 a conversion are not being held or used in a manner consistent with  
11 information provided to the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General, the  
12 ~~commissioner~~ Board, or a court in connection with any application or  
13 proceedings under this section, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may  
14 investigate the matter pursuant to procedures set forth generally in 9 V.S.A.  
15 § 2460 and may bring an action in Washington ~~superior court~~ Superior Court  
16 or in the ~~superior court~~ Superior Court of any county where one of the parties  
17 has a principal place of business. The ~~court~~ Court may order appropriate relief  
18 in such circumstances, including avoidance of the conversion or transfer of the  
19 converted assets or proceeds or the amount of any private inurement to a  
20 person or party for use consistent with the purposes for which the assets were  
21 held prior to the conversion, and the award of costs of investigation and

1 prosecution under this subsection, including the reasonable value of legal  
2 services.

3 (o) Remedies and penalties for violations.

4 (1) The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may bring or maintain a civil  
5 action in the Washington ~~superior court~~ Superior Court, or any other county in  
6 which one of the parties has its principal place of business, to enjoin, restrain,  
7 or prevent the consummation of any conversion which has not been approved  
8 in accordance with this section or where approval of the conversion was  
9 obtained on the basis of materially inaccurate information furnished by any  
10 party to the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General or the ~~commissioner~~ Board.

11 \* \* \*

12 (p) Conversion of less than a qualifying amount of assets.

13 (1) The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General may conduct an investigation  
14 relating to a conversion pursuant to the procedures set forth generally in  
15 9 V.S.A. § 2460 if the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General has reason to believe  
16 that a nonprofit hospital has converted or is about to convert less than a  
17 qualifying amount of its assets in such a manner that would:

18 (A) if it met the qualifying amount threshold, require an application  
19 under subsection (e) of this section; and

20 (B) constitute a conversion that does not meet one or more of the  
21 standards set forth in subsection (j) of this section.

1           (2) The ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General, in consultation with the  
2 ~~commissioner~~ Green Mountain Care Board, may bring an action with respect  
3 to any conversion of less than a qualifying amount of assets, according to the  
4 procedures set forth in subsection (n) of this section. The ~~attorney general~~  
5 Attorney General shall notify the ~~commissioner~~ Board of any action  
6 commenced under this subsection. The ~~commissioner~~ Board shall be permitted  
7 to investigate and determine whether the transaction satisfies the criteria  
8 established in subdivision (g)(2) of this section, and to request that the ~~court~~  
9 Court consider the ~~commissioner's~~ Board's recommendation in its decision  
10 under this subsection. In such an action, the ~~superior court~~ Superior Court may  
11 enjoin or void any transaction and may award any other relief as provided  
12 under subsection (n) of this section.

13           (3) In any action brought by the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General  
14 under this subdivision, the ~~attorney general~~ Attorney General shall have the  
15 burden to establish that the conversion:

16           (A) violates one or more of the standards listed in subdivision (j)(1),  
17 (3), (4), or (6); or

18           (B) substantially violates one or more of the standards set forth in  
19 subdivisions (j)(2) and (5) of this section.

20           (q) Other preexisting authority.



1 become invalid if an application is not filed within six months of the date that  
2 the letter of intent is received or, in the case of review cycle applications under  
3 section 9439 of this title, within such time limits as the Board shall establish by  
4 rule. ~~Except for requests for expedited review under subdivision (5) of this~~  
5 ~~subsection, The Board shall post~~ public notice of such letters of intent ~~shall be~~  
6 ~~provided in newspapers having general circulation in the region of the State~~  
7 ~~affected by the letter of intent~~ on its website electronically within five business  
8 days of receipt. The public notice shall identify the applicant, the proposed  
9 new health care project, and the date by which a competing application or  
10 petition to intervene must be filed. ~~In addition, a copy of the public notice shall~~  
11 ~~be sent to the clerk of the municipality in which the health care facility is~~  
12 ~~located. Upon receipt, the clerk shall post the notice in or near the clerk's office~~  
13 ~~and in at least two other public places in the municipality.~~

14 (B) Applicants who agree that their proposals are subject to  
15 jurisdiction pursuant to section 9434 of this title shall not be required to file a  
16 letter of intent pursuant to subdivision (A) of this subdivision (2) and may file  
17 an application without further process. Public notice of the application shall be  
18 ~~provided upon filing~~ posted electronically on the Board's website as provided  
19 for in subdivision (A) of this subdivision (2) for letters of intent.

20 \* \* \*

1           (5) An applicant seeking expedited review of a certificate of need  
2 application may simultaneously file ~~a letter of intent and~~ with the Board a  
3 request for expedited review and an application with the Board. ~~Upon~~ After  
4 receiving the request and an application, the Board shall issue public notice of  
5 the request and application in the manner set forth in subdivision (2) of this  
6 subsection. At least 20 days after the public notice was issued, if no competing  
7 application has been filed and no party has sought and been granted, nor is  
8 likely to be granted, interested party status, the Board, upon making a  
9 determination that the proposed project may be uncontested and does not  
10 substantially alter services, as defined by rule, or upon making a determination  
11 that the application relates to a health care facility affected by bankruptcy  
12 proceedings, ~~the Board shall issue public notice of the application and the~~  
13 ~~request for expedited review and identify a date by which a competing~~  
14 ~~application or petition for interested party status must be filed. If a competing~~  
15 ~~application is not filed and no person opposing the application is granted~~  
16 ~~interested party status, the Board~~ may formally declare the application  
17 uncontested and may issue a certificate of need without further process, or with  
18 such abbreviated process as the Board deems appropriate. If a competing  
19 application is filed or a person opposing the application is granted interested  
20 party status, the applicant shall follow the certificate of need standards and  
21 procedures in this section, except that in the case of a health care facility

1 affected by bankruptcy proceedings, the Board after notice and an opportunity  
2 to be heard may issue a certificate of need with such abbreviated process as the  
3 Board deems appropriate, notwithstanding the contested nature of the  
4 application.

5 \* \* \*

6 (7) For purposes of this section, "interested party" status shall be granted  
7 to persons or organizations representing the interests of persons who  
8 demonstrate that they will be substantially and directly affected by the new  
9 health care project under review. Persons able to render material assistance to  
10 the Board by providing nonduplicative evidence relevant to the determination  
11 may be admitted in an amicus curiae capacity but shall not be considered  
12 parties. ~~A petition seeking party or amicus curiae status must be filed within 20~~  
13 ~~days following public notice of the letter of intent, or within 20 days following~~  
14 ~~public notice that the petition is complete. A person shall file a petition seeking~~  
15 party or amicus curiae status within 20 days following public notice of the  
16 letter of intent or, if no letter of intent is required to be filed pursuant to  
17 subdivision (2)(B) of this subsection, within 20 days following public notice of  
18 the application. If a person demonstrates circumstances that were not  
19 reasonably apparent within the 20 days following public notice of either the  
20 letter of intent or of the application, as applicable, the Board may allow for a  
21 later petition. The Board shall grant or deny a petition to intervene under this

1 subdivision within 15 days after the petition is filed. The Board shall grant or  
2 deny the petition within an additional 30 days upon finding that good cause  
3 exists for the extension. Once interested party status is granted, the Board shall  
4 provide the information necessary to enable the party to participate in the  
5 review process, including information about procedures, copies of all written  
6 correspondence, and copies of all entries in the application record.

7 \* \* \*

8 Sec. 27. 18 V.S.A. § 9445 is amended to read:

9 § 9445. ENFORCEMENT

10 (a) Any person who offers or develops any new health care project within  
11 the meaning of this subchapter without first obtaining a certificate of need as  
12 required herein, or who otherwise violates any of the provisions of this  
13 subchapter, may be subject to the following administrative sanctions by the  
14 Board, after notice and an opportunity to be heard:

15 (1) The Board may order that no license or certificate permitted to be  
16 issued by ~~the Department~~ or any other State agency may be issued to any  
17 health care facility to operate, offer, or develop any new health care project for  
18 a specified period of time, or that remedial conditions be attached to the  
19 issuance of such licenses or certificates.

20 (2) The Board may order that payments or reimbursements to the entity  
21 for claims made under any health insurance policy, subscriber contract, or

1 health benefit plan offered or administered by any public or private health  
2 insurer, including the Medicaid program and any other health benefit program  
3 administered by the State be denied, reduced, or limited, and in the case of a  
4 hospital that the hospital's annual budget approved under subchapter 7 of this  
5 chapter be adjusted, modified, or reduced.

6 (b) In addition to all other sanctions, if any person offers or develops any  
7 new health care project without first having been issued a certificate of need or  
8 certificate of exemption for the project, or violates any other provision of this  
9 subchapter or any lawful rule adopted pursuant to this subchapter, the Board,  
10 ~~the Commissioner~~, the Office of the Health Care Advocate, the State  
11 Long-Term Care Ombudsman, and health care providers and consumers  
12 located in the State shall have standing to maintain a civil action in the  
13 Superior Court of the county in which such alleged violation has occurred, or  
14 in which such person may be found, to enjoin, restrain, or prevent such  
15 violation. Upon written request by the Board, it shall be the duty of the  
16 Vermont Attorney General to furnish appropriate legal services and to  
17 prosecute an action for injunctive relief to an appropriate conclusion, which  
18 shall not be reimbursed under subdivision (a)(2) of this section.

19 \* \* \*

20 Sec. 28. 18 V.S.A. § 9456(h) is amended to read:

1 (h)(1) If a hospital violates a provision of this section, the Board may  
2 maintain an action in the Superior Court of the county in which the hospital is  
3 located to enjoin, restrain, or prevent such violation.

4 \* \* \*

5 (3)(A) The Board shall require the officers and directors of a hospital to  
6 file under oath, on a form and in a manner prescribed by the ~~Commissioner~~  
7 Board, any information designated by the Board and required pursuant to this  
8 subchapter. The authority granted to the Board under this subsection is in  
9 addition to any other authority granted to the Board under law.

10 (B) A person who knowingly makes a false statement under oath or  
11 who knowingly submits false information under oath to the Board or to a  
12 hearing officer appointed by the Board or who knowingly testifies falsely in  
13 any proceeding before the Board or a hearing officer appointed by the Board  
14 shall be guilty of perjury and punished as provided in 13 V.S.A. § 2901.

15 **Sec. 29. SUSPENSION; PROHIBITION ON MODIFICATION OF**

16 **UNIFORM FORMS**

17 **The Department of Financial Regulation shall not modify the existing**

18 **common forms, procedures, and rules described in 18 V.S.A. §§ 9408,**

19 **9408a(b), 9408a(e), and 9418(f) prior to January 1, 2017.**

1 **Sec. 30. UNIFORM FORMS; EVALUATION**

2 The Director of Health Care Reform in the Agency of Administration, in  
3 collaboration with the Green Mountain Care Board and the Department of  
4 Financial Regulation, shall evaluate the necessity of maintaining provisions  
5 regarding common claims forms and procedures, uniform provider  
6 credentialing, and suspension of interest accrual for failure to pay claims if the  
7 failure was not within the insurer's control, as those provisions are codified in  
8 18 V.S.A. §§ 9408, 9408a(b), 9408(e), and 9418(f). On or before December  
9 15, 2015, the Director shall provide his or her findings and recommendations  
10 to the House Committee on Health Care, the Senate Committees on Health and  
11 Welfare and on Finance, and the Health Reform Oversight Committee.

12 \* \* \* Presuit Mediation for Medical Malpractice Claims \* \* \*

13 Sec. 31. 12 V.S.A. chapter 215, subchapter 2 is added to read:

14 Subchapter 2. Mediation Prior to Filing a Complaint of Malpractice

15 § 7011. PURPOSE

16 The purpose of mediation prior to filing a medical malpractice case is to  
17 identify and resolve meritorious claims and reduce areas of dispute prior to  
18 litigation, which will reduce the litigation costs, reduce the time necessary to  
19 resolve claims, provide fair compensation for meritorious claims, and reduce  
20 malpractice-related costs throughout the system.

1     § 7012. PRESUIT MEDIATION; SERVICE

2           (a) A potential plaintiff may serve upon each known potential defendant a  
3     request to participate in presuit mediation prior to filing a civil action in tort or  
4     in contract alleging that an injury or death resulted from the negligence of a  
5     health care provider and to recover damages resulting from the personal injury  
6     or wrongful death.

7           (b) Service of the request required in subsection (a) of this section shall be  
8     in letter form and shall be served on all known potential defendants by certified  
9     mail. The date of mailing such request shall toll all applicable statutes of  
10    limitations.

11          (c) The request to participate in presuit mediation shall name all known  
12    potential defendants, contain a brief statement of the facts that the potential  
13    plaintiff believes are grounds for relief, and be accompanied by a certificate of  
14    merit prepared pursuant to section 1051 of this title, and may include other  
15    documents or information supporting the potential plaintiff's claim.

16          (d) Nothing in this chapter precludes potential plaintiffs and defendants  
17    from presuit negotiation or other presuit dispute resolution to settle potential  
18    claims.

19     § 7013. MEDIATION RESPONSE

20          (a) Within 60 days of service of the request to participate in presuit  
21    mediation, each potential defendant shall accept or reject the potential

1 plaintiff's request for presuit mediation by mailing a certified letter to counsel  
2 or if the party is unrepresented to the potential plaintiff.

3 (b) If the potential defendant agrees to participate, within 60 days of the  
4 service of the request to participate in presuit mediation, each potential  
5 defendant shall serve a responsive certificate on the potential plaintiff by  
6 mailing a certified letter indicating that he or she, or his or her counsel, has  
7 consulted with a qualified expert within the meaning of section 1643 of this  
8 title and that expert is of the opinion that there are reasonable grounds to  
9 defend the potential plaintiff's claims of medical negligence. Notwithstanding  
10 the potential defendant's acceptance of the request to participate, if the  
11 potential defendant does not serve such a responsive certificate within the  
12 60-day period, then the potential plaintiff need not participate in the presuit  
13 mediation under this title and may file suit. If the potential defendant is willing  
14 to participate, presuit mediation may take place without a responsive certificate  
15 of merit from the potential defendant at the plaintiff's election.

16 § 7014. PROCESS; TIME FRAMES

17 (a) The mediation shall take place within 60 days of the service of all  
18 potential defendants' acceptance of the request to participate in presuit  
19 mediation. The parties may agree to an extension of time. If in good faith the  
20 mediation cannot be scheduled within the 60-day time period, the potential  
21 plaintiff need not participate and may proceed to file suit.

1        (b) If presuit mediation is not agreed to, the mediator certifies that  
2        mediation is not appropriate, or mediation is unsuccessful, the potential  
3        plaintiff may initiate a civil action as provided in the Vermont Rules of Civil  
4        Procedure. The action shall be filed:

5                (1) within 90 days of the potential plaintiff's receipt of the potential  
6        defendant's letter refusing mediation, the failure of the potential defendant to  
7        file a responsive certificate of merit within the specified time period, or the  
8        mediator's signed letter certifying that mediation was not appropriate or that  
9        the process was complete; or

10               (2) prior to the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations,  
11        whichever is later.

12        (c) If presuit mediation is attempted unsuccessfully, the parties shall not be  
13        required to participate in mandatory mediation under Rule 16.3 of the Vermont  
14        Rules of Civil Procedure.

15        § 7015. CONFIDENTIALITY

16        All written and oral communications made in connection with or during the  
17        mediation process set forth in this chapter shall be confidential. The mediation  
18        process shall be treated as a settlement negotiation under Rule 408 of the  
19        Vermont Rules of Evidence.

20        Sec. 32. REPORT

1        On or before December 1, 2019, the Secretary of Administration or  
2        designee shall report to the Senate Committees on Health and Welfare and on  
3        Judiciary and the House Committees on Health Care and on Judiciary on the  
4        impacts of 12 V.S.A. § 1042 (certificate of merit) and 12 V.S.A. chapter 215,  
5        subchapter 2 (presuit mediation). The report shall address the impacts that  
6        these reforms have had on:

7                (1) consumers, physicians, and the provision of health care services;

8                (2) the rights of consumers to due process of law and to access to the  
9        court system; and

10               (3) any other service, right, or benefit that was or may have been  
11        affected by the establishment of the medical malpractice reforms in 12 V.S.A.  
12        § 1042 and 12 V.S.A. chapter 215, subchapter 2.

13                                \* \* \* Managed Care Organizations \* \* \*

14        Sec. 33. REGULATION OF MANAGED CARE ORGANIZATIONS

15        ***(per Senator Lyons)***

16        The Director of Health Care Reform in the Agency of Administration or  
17        designee shall compare the provisions of State statutes and rules regulating  
18        managed care organizations with the requirements in federal law applicable to  
19        the Department of Vermont Health Access in its role as a public managed care  
20        organization in order to identify opportunities for greater alignment in the  
21        regulation of these entities. On or before January 15, 2016, the Director shall

1 provide the comparison and any recommendations for legislative action to the  
2 House Committee on Health Care and the Senate Committees on Health and  
3 Welfare and on Finance.

4 \* \* \* Medicaid Rates \* \* \*

5 Sec. 34. PROVIDER RATE SETTING; MEDICAID **(per Senator Lyons)**

6 The Secretary of Administration or designee and the Green Mountain Care  
7 Board shall collaborate in the development of a proposal to make the rate  
8 setting process more transparent for providers participating in Vermont's  
9 Medicaid program, including requiring justification for provider rates and  
10 modifications to rates and providing the Green Mountain Care Board with  
11 oversight over the Medicaid rate setting process. On or before December 1,  
12 2015, the Secretary or designee and the Board shall provide the proposal to the  
13 House Committee on Health Care, the Senate Committees on Health and  
14 Welfare and on Finance, and the Health Reform Oversight Committee.

15 \* \* \* Designated Agency Budgets \* \* \*

16 Sec. 35. GREEN MOUNTAIN CARE BOARD; DESIGNATED AGENCY  
17 BUDGETS **(per Senator Lyons)**

18 The Green Mountain Care Board shall analyze the budget of one or more  
19 designated agencies providing services to Vermont residents using criteria  
20 similar to the Board's review of hospital budgets pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 9456.  
21 The Board shall also consider whether to include designated and specialized

1 service agencies in the all-payer model. On or before January 31, 2016, the  
2 Board shall recommend to the House Committees on Appropriations, on  
3 Health Care, and on Human Services and the Senate Committees on  
4 Appropriations, on Health and Welfare, and on Finance whether the Board  
5 should be responsible for the annual review of all designated agency budgets  
6 and whether designated and specialized service agencies should be included in  
7 the all-payer model.

8 \* \* \* Employer Assessment \* \* \*

9 Sec. 36. 21 V.S.A. § 2003 is amended to read:

10 § 2003. HEALTH CARE FUND CONTRIBUTION ASSESSMENT

11 (a) The Commissioner of Labor shall assess and an employer shall pay a  
12 quarterly Health Care Fund contribution for each full-time equivalent  
13 uncovered employee employed during that quarter ~~in excess of:~~

14 ~~(1) eight full-time equivalent employees in fiscal years 2007 and 2008;~~

15 ~~(2) six full-time equivalent employees in fiscal year 2009; and~~

16 ~~(3) four full-time equivalent employees in fiscal years 2010 and~~

17 ~~thereafter.~~

18 (b) ~~For any quarter in fiscal years 2007 and 2008, the amount of the Health~~  
19 ~~Care Fund contribution shall be \$ 91.25 for each full-time equivalent employee~~  
20 ~~in excess of eight. For each fiscal year after fiscal year 2008, the number of~~  
21 ~~excluded full-time equivalent employees shall be adjusted in accordance with~~

1 ~~subsection (a) of this section, and the amount of the Health Care Fund~~  
2 ~~contribution shall be adjusted by a percentage equal to any percentage change~~  
3 ~~in premiums for the second lowest cost silver level plan in the Vermont Health~~  
4 ~~Benefit Exchange.~~

5 (1) For any quarter in calendar year 2015, the amount of the Health Care  
6 Fund contribution shall be calculated as follows:

7 (A) for employers with at least five but no more than 49 full-time  
8 equivalent employees, the amount of the Health Care Fund contribution shall  
9 be \$140.84 for each uncovered full-time equivalent employee in excess of  
10 four;

11 (B) for employers with at least 50 but no more than 249 full-time  
12 equivalent employees, the amount of the Health Care Fund Contribution shall  
13 be \$228.13 for each uncovered full-time equivalent employee in excess of four;  
14 and

15 (C) for employers with more than 250 full-time equivalent  
16 employees, the amount of the Health Care Fund Contribution shall be  
17 \$319.38 for each uncovered full-time equivalent employee in excess of four.

18 (2) For each calendar year after calendar year 2015, the Health Care  
19 Fund contribution amounts described in subdivision (1) of this subsection shall  
20 be adjusted by a percentage equal to any percentage change in premiums for

1 the second lowest cost silver-level plan in the Vermont Health Benefit  
2 Exchange.

3 \* \* \*

4 **Sec. 37. REPEALS**

5 (a) 18 V.S.A. §§ 9411 (other powers and duties of the Commissioner of  
6 Financial Regulation) and 9415 (allocation of expenses) are repealed.

7 (b) 12 V.S.A. chapter 215, subchapter 2 shall be repealed on July 1, 2020.

8  
9 \* \* \* Effective Dates \* \* \*

10 **Sec. 38. EFFECTIVE DATES (to be completed)**

11 (a)

12 (b) Sec. 36 (employer assessment) shall take effect on October 1, 2015.

13 and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating  
14 to health care reform priorities”.

15  
16  
17  
18 (Committee vote: \_\_\_\_\_)

19 \_\_\_\_\_

20 Senator \_\_\_\_\_

21 FOR THE COMMITTEE